The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America

A Mutual Company – Incorporated 1860 by the State of New York 7 Hanover Square, New York, New York 10004

Individual Dental Family Insurance Policy

POLICYOWNER Refer to Your ID Card POLICY NUMBER Refer to Your ID Card EFFECTIVE DATE Refer to Your ID Card

POLICY ANNIVERSARIES: The Anniversary of the Effective Date, Each Year.

INITIAL PREMIUM: \$

The Guardian Life Insurance Company ("Guardian") certifies that You are being issued this Policy as the Policyholder for the Dental Insurance described in this Policy. This Policy includes the Schedule of Benefits for the plan. **PLEASE READ THIS POLICY CAREFULLY.**

NOTICE: THIS IS A LIMITED BENEFIT POLICY. IT DOES NOT PROVIDE COVERAGE FOR ANY MEDICAL BENEFITS AND SERVICES. THIS IS AN EXCHANGE CERTIFIED STAND ALONE DENTAL POLICY THAT PROVIDES COVERAGE FOR CERTAIN DENTAL BENEFITS AND SERVICES ONLY.

RENEWAL AT THE OPTION OF THE COMPANY

This Policy is conditionally renewable and will continue in effect as long as the Policyowner pays the premiums, as agreed to at the time of application, when they are due or within the grace period in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Policy.

You may renew this Policy for a further term by timely payment of renewal, unless We send You prior notice of Our intention not to renew. If We do refuse to renew We must do so on all Policies of this form issued under the same class in Your state. At least 60 days prior to the premium due date, We will send written notice of non-renewal to Your last known address shown on record. Non-renewal will not affect any otherwise valid claim that starts while this Policy is in force.

We reserve the right to change rates on this Policy issued to persons of the same class in Your state. If We do raise Your premium due to a change in rates, then at least 60 days prior to Your renewal date, We will send written notice to You at Your last known address shown on record.

TEN-DAY RIGHT TO EXAMINE POLICY

You have the right to return this Policy to Guardian within 10 days of receipt, and to have the premium promptly refunded if, after examination, You are not satisfied with this Policy for any reason.

This Policy is governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

IN WITNESS OF WHICH, GUARDIAN has caused this Policy to be executed as of the effective date approved by Us, which is its date of issue.

Kaymond J mana

Raymond Marra, Senior Vice President, Group Products and Marketing

THIS POLICY MAY NOT APPLY WHEN YOU HAVE A CLAIM! PLEASE READ! This policy was issued based on the information entered in your application, a copy of which is attached to the policy. If you know of any misstatement in your application, you should advise the Company immediately regarding the incorrect or omitted information; otherwise, your policy may not be a valid contract.

THIS POLICY IS NOT A MEDICARE SUPPLEMENT POLICY. If you are eligible for Medicare, review the Guide to Health Insurance for People with Medicare available from the company."

TABLE OF CONTENTS

IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING YOUR INSURANCE	4
DENTAL POLICY OF INSURANCE	5
ENTIRE CONTRACT; CHANGES	5
TIME LIMIT ON CERTAIN DEFENSES	5
PROHIBITION OF RESCISSION	5
NOTICE REGARDING YOUR RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	6
Rights:	6
Responsibilities:	6
ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT	7
Who May Enroll	7
When Coverage Begins	7
Disenrollment	7
Loss of Eligibility	7
Grace Period	7
Termination of Policy	8
Reinstatement	8
OVERVIEW OF DENTAL BENEFITS	8
Deductibles	8
Benefit Amounts	8
Preferred Provider	8
Non-Preferred Provider	8
Pre-Treatment Estimates	9
Pre-Authorizations	9
Customer Service	9
Selecting Your Dentist	9
Changing Your Dentist	9
FILING CLAIMS	10
Filing a Claim for Dental Insurance Benefits	10
Notice of Claim	10
Claim Forms	10
Proof of Loss	10

Time of Payment of Claims		
Payment of Claims		
Physical Examinations and Autopsy	10	
Change of Beneficiary	10	
Cancellation by Insured	10	
Alternative Dental Treatment	11	
GENERAL PROVISIONS		
Assignment	11	
Recovery of Overpayments	11	
How We Recover Overpayments		
Legal Actions	11	
COMPLAINT AND APPEAL PROCESS		
Definitions	12	
Internal Appeal Procedures	13	
DEFINITIONS	17	

IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING YOUR INSURANCE

In the event You need to contact someone about this insurance for any reason please contact Your agent. If no agent was involved in the sale of this insurance, or if You have additional questions You may contact the insurance company issuing this insurance at the following address and telephone number:

The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America 7 Hanover Square New York, New York 10004

If You have been unable to contact or obtain satisfaction from the company or the agent, You may contact:

Virginia State Corporation Commission Bureau of Insurance P.O. Box 1157 Richmond, VA 23218]

Telephone Numbers

National Toll-Free Number: (877) 310-6560

Toll-Free Number: (800) 552-7945 Local Number: (804) 371-9691

Written correspondence is preferable so that a record of Your inquiry is maintained. When contacting Your agent, company or the Bureau of Insurance, have Your policy number available. If You have a complaint pertaining to the availability, delivery, or quality of health care services including Adverse Decisions, claims payments, the handling or reimbursement for such service(s), or any other matter, You may contact:

Office of Licensure and Certification Virginia Department of Health 9960 Maryland Drive - Suite 401 Richmond, VA 23233-1463

Telephone: (804) 367-2106 (Richmond Metro Area)

(800) 955-1819 Fax: (804) 527-4503

E-mail: mchip@vdh.virginia.gov

You have the right to file a complaint.

DENTAL POLICY OF INSURANCE

This Individual Dental Policy, along with the Schedule of Benefits with exclusions and limitations, and application, provide a complete description of how Your Guardian dental plan operates, Your benefits and the plan's restrictions and limitations.

ENTIRE CONTRACT; CHANGES

This contract, including the Policy, Schedule of Benefits with exclusions and limitations, Your application form and the attached papers, constitutes the entire contract of insurance. A copy of your application shall be attached to the Policy when issued. No change in this Policy shall be valid until approved by an executive officer of the insurer and unless such approval be endorsed hereon or attached hereto. No agent has authority to change this contract or to waive any of its provisions.

TIME LIMIT ON CERTAIN DEFENSES

After two years from the date of issue of this Policy, only fraudulent misstatements in the application shall be used to void the coverage or to deny a claim for loss incurred or disability commencing after the expiration of the two-year period. No written statement made by any applicant shall be used in any contest unless a copy of the statement is furnished to the Covered Person or to his or her beneficiary or personal representative.

PROHIBITION OF RESCISSION

Guardian shall not rescind this Policy once You are covered under the Policy, except if You have performed an act or practice that constitutes fraud or make an intentional misrepresentation of a material fact as prohibited by the terms of this Policy. This Policy shall not be cancelled without prior notice to You.

NOTICE REGARDING YOUR RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Rights:

- Guardian will comply with all applicable laws relating to privacy.
- You and Your Dentist are responsible for Your dental treatment. Guardian does not require
 or prohibit any specified treatment. Only certain specified services are covered for benefits.
- You may request a pre-treatment estimate of benefits for the dental services to be provided. However, actual benefits will be determined after treatment has been performed.
- You may request a written response from Guardian to any written concern or complaint.
- You have the right to receive an explanation of benefits which describes the benefit determinations for Your dental insurance.

Responsibilities:

- You must pay any charges for services performed by the Dentist. If the Dentist agrees to accept part of the payment directly from Guardian, You must pay the remaining part of the Dentist's charge.
- You should follow the treatment plans and health care recommendations agreed upon by
 You and the Dentist.

ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT

Who May Enroll

You and any of Your eligible dependents may enroll in this plan. Guardian defines eligible dependents as:

- Your spouse or domestic partner.
- Your children or grandchildren, up to age 26, for whom You provide care, including adopted children, step-children, or other children for whom You are required to provide dental care pursuant to a court or administrative order.
- Your children who are incapable of self-sustaining employment and support due to a intellectual disability or physical handicap.

In the event of the Your death, Your spouse, if covered under the Policy, shall become the Insured.

When Coverage Begins

Coverage will begin at 12:01 A.M. Standard Time on the first day of the month following the date Your premium payment is received by Guardian, so long as the premium is received on or before the twentieth (20th) day of the preceding month. Check with Guardian if You have any questions about when Your coverage begins.

Disenrollment

Enrollment in this dental coverage beyond Your initial twelve (12) month commitment will be automatically continued until You disenroll.

If You disenroll before Your pre-paid rate term expires, You will be charged the monthly rates for any months You were actively enrolled when calculating refund amounts.

Disenrollment may also occur when Your premium payment is not received by the first (1st) of the month following the due date. Please see the "Grace Period" provision below for more information.

Loss of Eligibility

A Covered Person will lose eligibility:

- When Guardian does not receive the required premium payment, subject to the Grace Period, below;
- On the day of the month in which a notice of voluntary termination is received or on such later date as may be specified in the notice;
- On the last day of the month in which he or she no longer meets eligibility requirements.

In the event of contract termination, no further benefits will be provided to You and none of the plan provisions will apply. We will promptly return the unearned portion of any premium paid. The earned premium shall be computed pro rata. Cancellation shall be without prejudice to any claim originating prior to the effective date of cancellation.

Grace Period

A grace period of thirty-one (31) days will be granted for the payment of each premium falling due after the first premium, during which grace period the Policy shall continue in force (subject to the right of Guardian to cancel in accordance with the Termination of Policy provision.) If no premium is received during the thirty-one (31) days, Your enrollment will be terminated.

Termination of Policy

If the required premium is not paid, Your coverage may be canceled not less than thirty-one (31) days after such premium was due. All periods of insurance will end at 12:01 A.M. Standard Time.

Reinstatement

If the renewal premium is not paid before the Grace Period ends, the policy will lapse. Later acceptance of the premium by Guardian or by an agent authorized to accept payment, without requiring an application for reinstatement, will reinstate the Policy. If the Company or its agent requires an application for reinstatement, the Insured will be given a conditional receipt for the premium. If the application is approved, the Policy will be reinstated as of the approval date. Lacking such approval, the Policy will be reinstated on the forty-fifth (45) day after the date of the conditional receipt unless We had previously written the Insured of its disapproval. The reinstated Policy will cover only loss that results from an injury sustained after the date of reinstatement and sickness that starts more than ten (10) days after such date. In all other respects the rights of the Insured and Guardian will remain the same, subject to any provisions noted or attached to the reinstated Policy. Any premiums the Company accepts for a reinstatement will be applied to a period for which premiums have not been paid. No premiums will be applied to any period more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of reinstatement.

OVERVIEW OF DENTAL BENEFITS

The Schedule of Benefits contains the benefits and sets forth the Deductibles, coinsurance amounts, and exclusions and limitations. Please review the Schedule of Benefits carefully to understand what benefits are covered under this plan and Your financial responsibility. The Guardian dental plan covers "Dentally Necessary" dental care for Group I (Diagnostic and Preventive), Group II (Basic), and Group III Services (Major). Additionally, Group IV (Orthodontic) Services are covered for Covered Persons under the Age 19.

This Dental Insurance gives Covered Persons access to Dentists who have contracted with Guardian. Contracted Dentists have agreed to limit their charge for a Covered Service to the Maximum Allowed Charge for such service. Under this plan, We pay benefits for Covered Services performed by either Preferred Providers or Non-Preferred Providers. This Guardian plan usually pays a higher level of benefits for Covered Services furnished by a Preferred Provider. Conversely, it usually pays less for Covered Services furnished by a Non-Preferred Provider. A Covered Person will usually be left with less out-of-pocket expense when a Preferred Provider is used.

Deductibles

The Deductible amounts, if any, are shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

Benefit Amounts

We will pay benefits in an amount equal to the Covered Percentage as shown in the Schedule of Benefits for charges incurred for a Covered Service, subject to the conditions set forth in this Policy.

Preferred Provider

If a Covered Service is performed by a Preferred Provider, Guardian will base the benefit on the Covered Percentage of the Maximum Allowed Charge.

If a Preferred Provider performs a Covered Service, You will be responsible for paying:

- The Deductible, if any; and
- Any other part of the Maximum Allowed Charge for which Guardian does not pay benefits.

Non-Preferred Provider

If a Covered Service is performed by a Non-Preferred Provider, Guardian will base the benefit on the charge listed in the fee schedule.

Non-Preferred Providers may charge more than the charge listed in the fee schedule. If a Non-Preferred Provider performs a Covered Service, You will be responsible for paying:

- The Deductible; and
- Any other part of the charge for which Guardian does not pay benefits.

Pre-Treatment Estimates

Pre-Treatment estimate requests are not required but may be submitted to Guardian for more complicated and expensive procedures such as crowns, wisdom teeth extractions, bridges, dentures, or periodontal surgery. When Your Dentist submits a pre-treatment estimate request to Guardian, You will receive an estimate of Your share of the cost and how much Guardian will pay before treatment begins. A pre-treatment estimate is particularly useful in the following cases:

- If You are having extensive work done and the total charges will exceed \$300.00;
- To make sure a particular procedure is covered;
- To see if any maximum benefits will be exceeded; or
- If You need to plan Your payment in advance.

By asking Your Dentist for a Pre-treatment estimate from Guardian before You agree to receive any prescribed major treatment, You will have an estimate up front of what the dental plan will pay, and the difference You will need to pay. Your Dentist may also be able to present alternative treatment options that will lower Your share of the bill while still meeting Your dental care needs.

Pre-Authorizations

You must receive pre-authorization approval for all medically necessary orthodontia that is received under this Policy. No claim for medically necessary orthodontia will be paid unless You or Your Dentist obtains pre-authorization approval, in writing, from Guardian prior to receiving any medically necessary orthodontic services.

Customer Service

We provide toll-free access to our Customer Service Associates to assist You with benefit coverage questions, resolving problems, or changing or selecting a Dentist. Customer Service can be reached Monday through Friday at (866) 569-9900 from 6:00 am to 6:00 pm, Pacific Standard Time. Automated service is also provided after hours for eligibility verification.

Selecting Your Dentist

When You enroll in the Guardian plan, You may receive dental care from:

- A Preferred Provider; or
- A Non-Preferred Provider

Please note that You enjoy the greatest benefits, including out-of-pocket savings, when You choose Guardian contracted Dentist. Please refer to the provider directory for a complete listing of Guardian's contracted Dentists. Or You may access our website at mydental.guardianlife.com to view Guardian contracted Dentists. Please check with Your Guardian Dentist to verify that Your plan is accepted.

Changing Your Dentist

You can choose any Guardian contracted provider at any time. If You wish to change Dentists, please review Guardian's provider directory for Dentists in Your area and call to schedule an appointment.

Page 9

You may also call Customer Service at (866) 569-9900 for assistance in choosing a Dentist.

FILING CLAIMS

Filing a Claim for Dental Insurance Benefits

When You receive services from a Preferred Provider, he or she will file the claim for dental insurance benefits for You. If You need to file a claim Yourself, both the notice of claim and any receipts or other supporting documentation should be sent to Guardian as set forth below. You can request a claim form by calling (866) 569-9900 or from our website at mydental.guardianlife.com.

Notice of Claim

Written notice of claim must be given to Guardian within twenty (20) days after the occurrence or commencement of any loss covered by the Policy, or as soon thereafter as is reasonably possible. Notice given by or on behalf of the insured or the beneficiary to the insurer at P O Box 254888, Sacramento, CA 95865 or to any authorized agent with information sufficient to identify the insured, shall be deemed notice to the insurer.

Claim Forms

Upon a notice of claim, Guardian will furnish You with the necessary forms for filing proof of loss. If such forms are not furnished to You within 15 days after receiving such notice, We will accept a written description and adequate proof that is the basis of the claim as proof of loss.

Proof of Loss

Written proof of loss must be furnished to Guardian within ninety (90) days after the date of such loss. Failure to furnish such proof within the time required shall not invalidate nor reduce any claim if it was not reasonably possible to give proof within such time, provided such proof is furnished as soon as reasonably possible and in no event, except in the absence of legal capacity, later than one year from the time specified.

Time of Payment of Claims

Benefits will be paid within fifteen (15) days after We receive due written proof in electronic form of a covered loss, or within 30 days after receipt of written proof of a covered loss so long as all information, including supporting documentation, is supplied with the claim.

Payment of Claims

Benefits will be paid to either the Insured or Dentist. Any other benefits unpaid at death may be paid , either to the Insured's beneficiary or the Insured's estate.

The Department of Medical Assistance Services is the payor of last resort

Physical Examinations and Autopsy

The Company at its own expense has the right to have the Insured examined as often as reasonably necessary while a claim is pending. It may also have an autopsy made unless prohibited by law.

Change of Beneficiary

The Insured can change the beneficiary at any time by giving the Company written notice. The beneficiary's consent is not required for this or any other change in the policy, unless the designation of the beneficiary is irrevocable.

Cancellation by Insured

You may cancel this policy at any time by written notice delivered or mailed to Us effective upon receipt or on such later date as may be specified in the notice. In the event of cancellation, We shall return promptly the unearned portion of any premium paid. The earned premium shall be computed pro rata. Cancellation shall be without prejudice to any claim originating prior to the effective date of cancellation.

Alternative Dental Treatment

If Guardian determines that other procedures, services or courses of treatment could be done to correct a dental condition, coverage will be limited to the least costly procedure that We determine will produce a professionally satisfactory result. In order to make a determination, Guardian may request x-rays and any other appropriate information from the Dentist.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Assignment

Your rights and benefits under this Policy are not assignable prior to a claim for benefits, except as required by law. We are not responsible for the validity of an assignment. Upon receipt of a Covered Service, You may assign dental insurance benefits to the Dentist providing such service. If You assign payment of dental insurance to the Dentist, We will pay benefits directly to the Dentist. Otherwise, We will pay dental insurance benefits to You.

Recovery of Overpayments

Guardian has the right to recover any amount it determines to be an overpayment for services received. An overpayment occurs if Guardian determines that the total amount paid by Guardian on a claim for dental insurance benefits is more than the total of the benefits due under this Policy.

How We Recover Overpayments

We may recover the overpayments by:

- Stopping or reducing any future benefits payable for dental insurance under this Policy or any other Policy issued to You by Guardian;
- Demanding an immediate refund of the overpayment; and
- Taking legal action.

If the overpayment results from our having made a payment to You or the Dentist, We may recover such overpayment.

Legal Actions

No legal action shall be brought to recover on this Policy within sixty (60) days after written proof of loss has been furnished in accordance with the requirements of this Policy. No legal action shall be brought after the expiration of three (3) years after the time written proof of loss is required to be furnished.

COMPLAINT AND APPEAL PROCESS

Definitions

As used in this section:

"Adverse Determination" means a determination by the *utilization review entity* that based upon information provided, a request for a benefit upon application of any utilization review technique does not meet the managed care health insurance plan's requirements for medical necessity, appropriateness, health care setting, level of care, or effectiveness or is determined to be experimental or investigational and the requested benefit is therefore denied, reduced or terminated or payment is not provided or made, in whole or in part, for the benefit.

"Appeal" means a formal request by a covered person or a provider on behalf of a covered person for reconsideration of a determination such as a utilization review recommendation, a benefit payment, an administrative action, or a quality-of-care or service issue.

"Appellant" means: (i) the covered person; (ii) the covered person's parent, guardian, legal custodian, or other individual authorized by law to act on behalf of the covered person, if the covered person is a minor; (iii) the covered person's spouse, parent, committee, legal guardian, or other individual authorized by law to act on behalf of the covered person if the covered person is not a minor but is incompetent or incapacitated; or (iv) the covered person's treating health care provider acting with the consent of the covered person, the covered person's parent, guardian, legal custodian, or other individual authorized by law to act on behalf of the covered person, if the covered person is a minor, or the covered person's spouse, parent, committee, legal guardian, or other individual authorized by law to act on behalf of the covered person is not a minor but is incompetent or incapacitated.

"Complaint" means a written communication primarily expressing a grievance. A complaint may pertain to the availability, delivery, or quality of health care services including adverse determinations, claims payments, the handling or reimbursement for such service(s), or any other matter pertaining to the covered person's contractual relationship with the Managed Care Health Insurance Plan (MCHIP).

"Concurrent review" means utilization review conducted during a patient's stay or course of treatment in a facility, the office of a health care professional, or other inpatient or outpatient health care setting.

"Final adverse determination" means an adverse determination involving a covered benefit that has been upheld by a managed care health insurance plan, or it's designee *utilization review entity*, at the completion of the managed care health insurance plan's internal appeal process.

"Independent review organization" means an organization selected by the Bureau of Insurance that conducts external reviews of adverse determinations and final adverse determinations.

"Managed care health insurance plan" or "MCHIP" means an arrangement for the delivery of health care in which Guardian undertakes to provide, arrange for, pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of health care services for a covered person on a prepaid or insured basis which: i) contains one or more incentive arrangements, including any credentialing requirements intended to influence the cost or level of health care services between the health carrier and one or more providers with respect to the delivery of health care services; and ii) requires or creates benefit payment differential incentives for covered persons to use providers that are directly or indirectly managed, owned, under contract with or employed by the health carrier. For the purposes of this definition, the prohibition of balance billing by a provider shall not be deemed a benefit payment differential incentive for covered persons to use providers who are directly or indirectly managed, owned, under contract with or employed by the health carrier. A single managed care health insurance plan may encompass multiple types of benefit payment differentials; however, a single managed care health insurance plan shall encompass only one provider network or set of provider networks.

"Medically necessary" means appropriate and necessary health care services which are rendered for any condition which, according to generally accepted principles of good medical practice, requires the diagnosis or direct care and treatment of an illness, injury, or pregnancy-related condition, and are not provided only as a convenience.

"Peer of the treating health care provider" means a physician or other health care professional who holds a nonrestricted license in the Commonwealth of Virginia or under a comparable licensing law of a state of the United States and in the same or similar specialty as typically manages the medical condition, procedure or treatment under review.

"Physician advisor" means a physician licensed to practice medicine in the Commonwealth of Virginia or under a comparable licensing law of a state of the United States who provides medical advice or information to a private review agent or a *utilization review entity* in connection with its *utilization review* activities.

"Prospective review" means utilization review conducted prior to an admission or a course of treatment.

'Retrospective review" means a review of medical necessity conducted after services have been provided to a patient, but does not include the review of a claim that is limited to an evaluation of reimbursement levels, veracity of documentation, accuracy of coding, or adjustment for payment.

"Timely" means the provision of services so as not to impair or jeopardize the integrity of the covered person's diagnosis or outcomes of illness.

"Treating health care provider" or "Provider" means:

- a) a licensed health care provider who renders or proposes to render health care services to a covered person; and
- b) for purposes of this provision, is acting on behalf of the covered person.

"Urgent Care Appeal" means an appeal for medical care or treatment with respect to which the application of the time periods for making non-urgent care determinations (i) could seriously jeopardize the life or health of the covered person or the ability of the covered person to regain maximum function; or (ii) in the opinion of the treating health care professional with knowledge of the covered person's medical condition, would subject the covered person to severe pain that cannot be adequately managed without the care or treatment that is the subject of the appeal. an urgent care appeal shall not be available for any post-service claim or retrospective adverse determination.

"Utilization Review" means a system for reviewing the necessity, appropriateness and efficiency of hospital, medical or other health care services rendered or proposed to be rendered to a covered person for the purpose of determining whether such services should be covered. Utilization review includes, but is not limited to, preadmission, concurrent and retrospective medical necessity determination, and review related to the appropriateness of the site at which services were or are to be delivered. Utilization review also includes determinations of medical necessity based upon contractual limitations regarding "experimental" or "investigational" procedures, by whatever terms designated in the evidence of coverage. Utilization review does not include any: (i) denial of benefits for a procedure which is explicitly excluded pursuant to the terms of the contract or evidence of coverage; (ii) review of issues concerning contractual restrictions on facilities to be used for the provision of services; or (iii) determination by an insurer as to the reasonableness and necessity of services for the treatment and care of an injury suffered by an insured for which reimbursement is claimed under a contract of insurance covering any other classes of insurance.

"Utilization review entity" or "entity" means an insurer or managed care health insurance plan licensee that performs utilization review or upon whose behalf utilization review is performed with regard to the health care or proposed health care that is the subject of the final adverse determination.

Internal Appeal Procedures

Complaint Process: If a covered person has concerns regarding a quality of care issue, he or she may file a *complaint* as follows:

In Writing: Center for Quality Health Care Services and Consumer Protection Virginia Department of Health 3600 W. Broad Street Suite 216

Richmond, VA 23230

Telephone: 804-367-2104 (Richmond Metro Area)

800-955-1819

Fax: 804-367-2149

E-mail: mchip@vdh.state.va.us

If a covered person or his or her *treating health care provider* does not agree with a *utilization review* determination, his or her *provider* may file, within 180 days of receipt of the *determination*, a *complaint* to request reconsideration of the *adverse determination*.

A *complaint* for reconsideration of a *utilization review* determination made by Guardian should be made to:

Guardian MRO Quality Assurance Group Quality Assurance-WRO Professional Relations VP PO Box 2457

Spokane, WA 99210-2457.

The *provider*'s written *complaint* requesting reconsideration should provide the *utilization review entity* with any added information which: (a) relates to the case; and (b) may impact on the first determination. A determination on reconsideration will be made by a *physician advisor*, *peer of the treating health care provider*, or a panel of other appropriate health care providers with at least one *physician advisor* or *peer of the treating health care provider* on the panel.

Resolution of the *complaint*, and written notification of such determination will be provided to the covered person and the *treating health care provider* no later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the *complaint*.

The written notification of such determination will include the criteria used and the clinical reason for the *adverse determination*, and, if any, the alternate length of treatment of the alternate treatment setting(s) that the *utilization review entity* deems to be appropriate.

If the reconsideration results in a *final adverse determination*, the covered person, his or her *provider*, or a representative of the covered person may *appeal* the *final adverse determination*.

Appeals of Adverse Determinations: Except as explained below for an urgent care appeal, a covered person, his or her *treating health care provider*, or a representative of the covered person may make a written request for an *appeal* of an *adverse determination* or a *final adverse determination* made by the *utilization review entity*.

An appeal for reconsideration of a determination made by Guardian should be made to:

Guardian MRO Quality Assurance Group Quality Assurance-WRO Professional Relations VP PO Box 2457

Spokane, WA 99210-2457.

The request for *appeal* of a determination should provide the *utilization review entity* with any additional evidence for consideration (e.g., pertinent medical records of the covered person's *provider*, the pertinent records of any facility in which health care is provided to the covered person, etc.).

Any information provided to the *utilization review entity* to support an *appeal* will be reviewed by a *physician advisor* or a *peer of the treating health care provider*. With the exception of expedited *appeals*, a *physician advisor* must be:

- a) a peer of the treating health care provider who proposes the care under review or who was primarily responsible for the care under review;
- b) board certified; and
- c) specialized in a discipline pertinent to the issue under review.

A physician advisor or peer of the treating health care provider who renders a decision on appeal must:

- a) not have participated in the adverse decision or any prior reconsideration thereof;
- b) not be employed by or be a director of the utilization review entity; and
- c) be licensed to practice in Virginia, or under a comparable licensing law of a state of the United States, as a peer of the treating health care provider.

In the *appeals* process, consideration will be given to the availability or non-availability of alternative health care services proposed by the *utilization review entity*.

Except for *urgent care appeals*, written notification of the results of the *appeal* process will be provided to the covered person, his or her *treating health care provider*, or the representative of the covered person who filed the *appeal*. Notification for *prospective reviews* will be provided no later than thirty (30) working days after receiving all required documentation. Notification for *retrospective reviews* will be no later than sixty (60) working days after receiving all required documentation. Notification for *concurrent care reviews* will be provided sufficiently in advance of a reduction or termination of a benefit after receipt of the claim to allow the *appellant* to *appeal* and obtain a determination on review before the benefit is reduced or terminated but in no case will this be less than thirty (30) working days after receiving all required documentation. The notification of all decisions will state the criteria used and the clinical reason for the decision.

Urgent Care Appeals of Adverse Determinations: When the *treating health care provider* believes that an *adverse determination* or adverse reconsideration warrants an immediate *appeal*, the *treating health care provider* shall have the opportunity to *appeal* on an urgent care basis.

An *urgent care appeal* may be requested only when the regular reconsideration and *appeals* process would delay the rendering of health care in a manner that would be detrimental to the health of the covered person. Both the *utilization review entity* and the *treating health care provider* must attempt to share the maximum information by telephone, facsimile machine, or otherwise to resolve the *urgent care appeal* in a satisfactory manner.

A written or oral *appeal* for *urgent care* reconsideration of an *adverse determination* or a *final adverse determination* made by Guardian should be made to:

Guardian Quality Assurance-WRO PO Box 2457 Spokane, WA 99210-2457

Phone: 1-800-541-7846 Fax: 1-509-468-6399

If additional information is needed to make a determination, the *appellant* will be notified of the specified information needed as soon as possible but not later than twenty-four (24) hours after receipt of the request for appeal. Such notice will be provided orally or, if requested by the *appellant*, it shall be provided in writing and shall state what specified information is needed. The *appellant* must provide the requested information within forty-eight (48) hours.

Any decision of an *urgent care appeal* must be made by a *physician advisor*, *peer of the treating health care provider*, or a panel of other appropriate health care providers with at least one *physician advisor* on the panel. A decision on a prospective *urgent care appeal* will be made by the *utilization review entity* of all information necessary to make such a determination. A decision on an concurrent *urgent care appeal* will be made by the *utilization review entity* no later than seventy-two (72) hours after receipt by the *utilization review entity* of all information necessary to make such a determination, but the request to continue treatment must be received at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the expiration of the prescribed period of time or number of treatments.

An *urgent care appeal* determination may be further appealed through the *utilization review entity*'s standard *appeal* process If:

- a) all material information and documentation was not reasonably available to the provider and to the *utilization review entity* at the time of the *expedited review appeal*;
- b) the *physician advisor* reviewing the case under an *urgent care review appeal*: i) was not a *peer of the treating health care provider*, and ii) was not board certified or board eligible, and specialized in a discipline pertinent to the issue under review.

If the review of an *urgent care appeal* by a *utilization review entity* results in a *final adverse determination*, the *utilization review entity* will immediately notify the person who requested the *urgent care appeal* of the *final adverse determination*.

Consumer Assistance

If you have any questions regarding an appeal or grievance concerning the health care services that you have been provided that have not been satisfactorily addressed by your plan, you may contact the Office of the Managed Care Ombudsman for assistance.

The Office of the Managed Care Ombudsman is charged with protecting the interests of *covered persons* under *MCHIP*'s in the Commonwealth of Virginia. For purposes of this plan, the Office of The Managed Care Ombudsman must:

- 1) assist *covered persons* in understanding their rights and the processes available to them according to their *managed care health insurance plan*;
- 2) answer inquiries from *covered persons*, their *treating health care providers*, and any representative of the *covered person* received via telephone, mail, electronic mail or in person;
- 3) provide to *covered persons*, their *treating health care providers*, and any representative of the *covered person* information concerning *managed health care insurance plans* and other *utilization review entities* upon request;
- 4) upon request, assist *covered persons* in using the procedures and processes available to them from their *managed care health insurance plan*, including all *utilization review appeals*. Such assistance may require the review of insurance and health care records of a *covered person*, which shall be done only with the express written consent of the *covered person*. The confidentiality of all such information shall be maintained in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.
- 5) ensure that *covered persons* have access to the services provided through the Office and that the *covered persons* receive timely responses from the representatives of the Office to the inquiries.

The address, telephone number, or E-mail address shown below should be used:

- a) in order to obtain assistance with any questions regarding an *appeal* or *complaint* concerning the health care services provided which have not been satisfactorily addressed by the *utilization review entity*; or
- b) in order to obtain assistance with the filing of an *appeal* regarding a *final adverse determination* with the Bureau of Insurance; or
- c) in order to obtain the *appeal* and authorization for release of medical information forms and any written

procedures necessary to register an *appeal* with the Bureau of Insurance regarding a *final adverse determination*.

Address: Office of the Managed Care Ombudsman

Bureau of Insurance P.O. Box 1157

Richmond, Virginia 23218

Telephone: 1-877-310-6560 toll-free

1-804-371-9032 in the Richmond Metropolitan Area

Ombudsman E-mail: ombudsman@scc.virginia.gov

Bureau of Insurance Website: www.scc.virginia.gov

DEFINITIONS

These definitions apply when the following terms are used, unless otherwise defined where they are used. Not all defined terms are used in their usual meaning and some have meanings that limit their application; therefore, please refer to this Definitions section for a helpful understanding of the defined terms that are capitalized.

Covered Percentage means:

- For a Covered Service performed by a Preferred Provider, the percentage of the Maximum Allowed Charge that We will pay for such services after any required Deductible is satisfied; and
- For a Covered Service performed by a Non-Preferred Provider, the percentage of the charge listed in the fee schedule that Guardian will pay for such services after any required Deductible is satisfied.

All Covered Percentages are included in the Schedule of Benefits for each Covered Service.

Covered Person means a person for whom Dental Insurance coverage has been purchased so long as it is in effect under this Policy.

Covered Service means a dental service used to treat a Covered Person's dental condition which is:

- prescribed or performed by a Dentist while the dental insurance provided by this Policy is in effect;
- Dentally Necessary to treat the condition; and
- Described in the Schedule of Benefits as a Covered Service.

Deductible means the amount You must pay before Guardian will pay for Covered Services.

Dentally Necessary means the services are required to prevent, identify, diagnose, treat, rehabilitate or ameliorate an individual's dental condition due to dental disease, in order to attain or maintain the individual's achievable dental health, provided that such services are:

- Consistent with generally accepted standards of dental practice that are defined standards and are based on credible scientific evidence published in peer- reviewed dental literature that is generally recognized by the relevant dental community, recommendations of a dental-specialty academy, the views of Dentists practicing in the relevant clinical areas, and any other relevant factors;
- Clinically appropriate in terms of type, frequency, timing, site, extent and duration and considered effective for the individual's dental condition;
- Not primarily for the convenience of the patient or Dentist;
- Not more costly than an alternative service or sequence of services at least as likely to
 produce equivalent therapeutic or diagnostic results as to the diagnosis or treatment of
 the individual's dental condition; and
- Based on an assessment of the individual and his or her dental condition.

We will not pay dental insurance benefits for charges incurred for:

Services which are not Dentally Necessary Services, those which do not meet generally
accepted standards of care for treating the particular dental condition, or which We
deem experimental in nature.

- Services for which You would not be required to pay in the absence of dental insurance.
- Services which are primarily cosmetic (including cosmetic orthodontia.)

Dentist means:

- A person licensed to practice dentistry in the jurisdiction where such services are performed; or
- Any other person whose services, according to applicable law, must be treated as Dentist's services for purposes of this Policy. Each such person must be licensed where the services are performed and must act within the scope of that license. The person must also be certified and/or registered if required.

Preferred Provider means a Dentist or dental care facility that is under contract with Guardian and has a contractual agreement with Guardian to accept the Maximum Allowed Charge as payment in full for a dental service.

Maximum Allowed Charge means the lesser of:

- The amount charged by the Dentist; or
- The charge listed in the fee schedule the Preferred Provider has agreed to accept as payment in full.

Non-Preferred Provider means a Dentist or dental care facility that is not under contract with Guardian.

We means The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America ("Guardian").

You or Your means the insured.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE & DISCRIMINATION AVISO IMPORTANTE SOBRE LA ASISTENCIA DE IDIOMA Y DISCRIMINACIÓN

English		If you or the person you are helping has questions about your insurance benefits, claims, or coverage, you have the right to get help and information in your language at no cost. To talk to an interpreter: if you have insurance from your employer, call the telephone number on your identification card; for all other members, please call 866-569-9900.
		The Guardian and its subsidiaries* comply with applicable Federal civil rights laws and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, or sex.
Spanish	Español	Si usted o la persona que está ayudando tiene preguntas acerca de su seguro, las reclamaciones o cobertura, usted tiene derecho a obtener ayuda e información en su idioma sin costo alguno. Para hablar con un intérprete: si tiene seguro de su empleador, llame al número de teléfono que aparece en su tarjeta de identificación; para todos los demás miembros, por favor llame al 866-569-9900.
		The Guardian y sus subsidiarias * cumplir con las leyes federales aplicables de derechos civiles y no discrimina por motivos de raza, color, origen nacional, edad, discapacidad, o sexo.
Chinese	中文	如果你或你正在帮助的人 拥有约你的保险利益,索赔或覆盖的问题,你有没有成本,以获取帮助和信息在你的语言的权利。要交谈的解释:如果您从您的雇主有保险,打电话给你的身份证上的电话号码;所有其他成员,请致电 866-569-9900。
		卫报及其子公司*遵守适用的联邦民权法和种族,肤色,国籍,年龄,残疾,或性的基础上不歧视。
Vietname	ese Tiếng Việt	Nếu bạn hoặc người bạn đang giúp đỡ có câu hỏi về quyền lợi bảo hiểm, yêu cầu của bạn, hoặc bảo hiểm, bạn có quyền được trợ giúp và thông tin trong ngôn ngữ của bạn miễn phí. Để nói chuyện với một thông dịch viên: nếu bạn có bảo hiểm từ công ty của bạn, hãy gọi số điện thoại trên thẻ nhận dạng của bạn; cho tất cả các thành viên khác, xin vui lòng gọi 866-569-9900.
		The Guardian và các công ty con của nó * tuân thủ pháp luật quyền dân sự liên bang áp dụng và không phân biệt đối xử trên cơ sở chủng tộc, màu da, nguồn gốc quốc gia, tuổi tác, khuyết tật, hoặc quan hệ tình dục.
Korean	한국어	당신이나 당신이 도움이되고 사람이 당신의 보험 혜택, 청구, 또는 범위에 대한 질문이있는 경우, 당신은 무료로 귀하의 언어로 도움과 정보를 얻을 수있는 권리가 있습니다. 통역 얘기하려면, 당신은 당신의 고용주로부터 보험이있는 경우, 귀하의 ID 카드에 전화 번호로 전화; 다른 모든 구성원에 대해, 866-569-9900로 전화 해주십시오.
		가디언과 그 자회사는 해당 연방 민권법을 준수하고 인종, 피부색, 출신 국가, 연령, 장애, 또는 성별에 근거하여 차별하지 않습니다*.
Tagalog	Tagalog	Kung ikaw o ang taong ikaw ay pagtulong ay may mga katanungan tungkol sa inyong mga benepisyo sa insurance, claims, o coverage, ikaw ay may karapatan upang makakuha ng tulong at impormasyon sa iyong wika nang walang gastos. Upang makipag-usap sa isang interpreter: kung mayroon kang insurance mula sa iyong tagapag-empleyo, tawagan ang numero ng telepono sa iyong identification card; para sa lahat ng iba pang mga miyembro, mangyaring tumawag sa 866-569-9900.
		The Guardian at ang mga subsidiaries * sumusunod sa naaangkop na mga Pederal na batas sa mga karapatang sibil at hindi maaaring makita ang kaibhan sa batayan ng lahi, kulay, bansang pinagmulan, edad, kapansanan, o sex.
Russian	Русский	Если вы или человек, которому вы помогаете есть вопросы по поводу вашего страховых выплат, претензий, или покрытия, вы имеете право получить помощь и информацию на вашем языке без каких-либо затрат. Для того, чтобы поговорить с переводчиком: если у вас есть страхование от Вашего работодателя, позвоните по номеру телефона на вашей идентификационной карточки; для всех остальных членов, просьба звонить по телефону 866-569-9900.
		The Guardian и его дочерние компании * соответствии с действующими федеральными законами о гражданских правах и не допускать дискриминации по признаку расы, цвета кожи, национального происхождения, возраста, инвалидности или пола.
Arabic	العربية	إذا كنت أنت أو الشخص الذي يساعد ديه أسئلة حول فوائد التأمين والمطالبات، أو تغطية، لديك الحق في الحصول على المساعدة والمعلومات في لغتك دون أي تكلفة. التحدث الى مترجم: إذا كان لديك التأمين من صاحب العمل الخاص بك، الاتصال على رقم الهاتف على بطاقة الهوية الخاصة بك. لجميع الأعضاء، يرجى الاتصال 866-9900-9900.
		الجارديان والشركات التابعة لها * الالتزام بالقوانين الاتحادية المطبقة الحقوق المدنية ولا تميز على أساس العرق أو اللون أو الأصل القومي أو السن أو الإعاقة، أو الجنس
French Cr	reole-Haitian	Si ou menm oswa moun nan w ap ede gen kesyon sou benefis asirans ou, reklamasyon, oswa pwoteksyon, ou gen dwa pou jwenn èd ak
Creole	Kreyòl	enfòmasyon nan lang ou a pa koute. Pou pale ak yon entèprèt: si ou gen asirans nan men anplwayè ou, rele nimewo telefòn sou kat idantifikasyon ou; pou tout lòt manm, tanpri rele 866-569-9900.
	Ayisyen	The Guardian ak filiales li yo * konfòme yo avèk lwa sou dwa sivil Federal aplikab yo, epi pa fè diskriminasyon sou baz ras, koulè, orijin nasyonal, laj, andikap, oswa fè sèks.
Polish	Polskie	Jeśli Ty lub osoba, do której pomoc ma pytania dotyczące świadczeń z ubezpieczenia, roszczenia lub pokrycia, masz prawo do uzyskania pomocy i informacji w swoim języku, bez żadnych kosztów. Aby rozmawiać z tłumacza: jeśli masz ubezpieczenie od pracodawcy, należy zadzwonić pod numer telefonu na karcie identyfikacyjnej; dla wszystkich pozostałych członków, zadzwoń 866-569-9900.
		The Guardian i jej spółek zależnych * przestrzegania obowiązujących przepisów federalnych praw obywatelskich i nie dyskryminacji ze względu na rasę, kolor skóry, pochodzenie narodowe, wiek, niepełnosprawność, czy płeć.
GC0175	.00	Critical Does 9/13/16 Port

GC017586 Critical Docs 9/13/16 Port

Si vous ou la personne que vous aidez a des questions sur vos prestations d'assurance, les prétentions ou la couverture, vous avez le droit d'obtenir de l'aide et de l'information dans votre langue, sans frais. Pour parler à un interprète: si vous avez l'assurance de votre employeur, appelez le numéro de téléphone sur votre carte d'identité; pour tous les autres membres, s'il vous plaît appelez 866-569-9900.
The Guardian et ses filiales * sont conformes aux lois fédérales relatives aux droits civils applicables et ne fait pas de discrimination sur la base de la race, la couleur, l'origine nationale, l'âge, le handicap ou le sexe.
Se voi o la persona che state aiutando ha domande circa la vostra prestazioni assicurative, reclami, o la copertura, si ha il diritto di richiedere assistenza e informazioni nella propria lingua, senza alcun costo. Per parlare con un interprete: se avete l'assicurazione dal datore di lavoro, chiamare il numero di telefono sulla carta d'identità; per tutti gli altri membri, si prega di chiamare 866-569-9900.
The Guardian e le sue controllate * conformi alle leggi federali vigenti diritti civili e non discrimina sulla base di razza, colore, nazionalità, età, disabilità, o di sesso.
اگر شما یا شخصی که شما در حال کمک به سوالات در مورد مزایای بیمه خود را، ادعا می کند، و یا پوشش، شما حق دریافت کمک و اطلاعات به زبان خود را بدون هیچ هزینه داشته باشد. برای صحبت با یک مترجم: اگر بیمه از کارفرمای خود، تماس با شماره تلفن بر روی کارت شناسایی خود را. برای همه اعضای دیگر، لطفا 866-990-9900 تماس بگیرید
گار دین و شرکتهای تابعه آن * * * مطابق با قوانین فدر ال حقوق مدنی قابل اجرا می کند و بر اساس نژاد، رنگ پوست، ملیت، سن، معلولیت و یا رابطه جنسی قائل نمی شود.
Եթե դուք կամ այն անձը, դուք օգնում ունի հարցեր ձեր ապահովագրական հատուցումներից, պահանջների, կամ լուսաբանման, դուք իրավունք ունեք ստանալու օգնություն եւ տեղեկատվություն Ձեր լեզվով ոչ մի գնով։ Խոսել է թարգմանչի։ Եթե ունեք ապահովագրություն Ձեր գործատուի, զանգահարեք հեռախոսահամարը Ձեր նույնականացման քարտ. բոլոր մյուս անդամների համար, խնդրում ենք զանգահարել 866-569-9900.
The Guardian եւ իր դուստր ձեռնարկություններն * համապատասխանեն կիրառելի դաշնային քաղաքացիական իրավունքների օրենքների եւ չի խտրականություն հիման վրա ռասայի, մաշկի գույնի, ազգային ծագման, տարիքի, հաշմանդամության, կամ սեռից։
Wenn Sie oder die Person, die Sie helfen, Fragen zu Ihrem Versicherungsleistungen , Ansprüche oder Abdeckung, haben Sie das Recht auf kostenlose Hilfe und Informationen in Ihrer Sprache zu erhalten. Um auf einen Dolmetscher sprechen: Wenn Sie eine Versicherung von Ihrem Arbeitgeber haben, rufen Sie die Telefonnummer auf der Ausweiskarte ; für alle anderen Mitglieder, rufen Sie bitte 866-569-9900.
The Guardian und ihre Tochtergesellschaften * mit den geltenden Bundes Bürgerrechte Gesetze einhalten und nicht zu diskriminieren auf der Grundlage von Rasse, Hautfarbe , nationaler Herkunft, Alter, Behinderung oder Geschlecht.
Se você ou a pessoa que você está ajudando tem dúvidas sobre seus benefícios de seguro, reivindicações, ou cobertura, você tem o direito de obter ajuda e informações na sua língua, sem nenhum custo. Para falar com um intérprete: se você tem seguro de seu empregador, ligue para o número de telefone no seu cartão de identificação; para todos os outros membros, ligue para 866-569-9900.
Este aviso tem informações importantes sobre a sua aplicação ou sua cobertura de seguro. Olhe para as datas-chave neste
The Guardian e suas subsidiárias * cumprir com as leis federais aplicáveis direitos civis e não discriminar com base em raça, cor, nacionalidade, idade, deficiência ou sexo.

^{*}Guardian Life Insurance Company of America subsidiaries includes First Commonwealth Companies, Managed Dental Care, Inc., Managed Dental Guard, Inc., Premier Access Insurance Company and Access Dental Plan, Inc.

GC017586 Critical Docs 9/13/16 Port